## Georgia Orienteering Club, Inc. 2008 Annual General Meeting

Location: Fort Yargo State Park

Date: June 8, 2008

President Martha Carr opened the meeting at 1:02 pm. 18 votes present, quorum achieved.

- 1. Approval of 2007 Minutes moved and seconded, unanimously approved.
- 2. Treasurer's Report Steve Shannonhouse presented a Treasurer's report for 2007 and YTD 2008. Report attached.
- 3. Reports: VP Maps Kevin Haywood reported Purple pen software is working well and there have been no complaints about our maps.
- 4. Martha says some folks are frustrated at not knowing whether a meet will be Epunch or not. Martha reported GAOC is using Epunching at 60% of our meets and the JROTC units are asking for Epunch on Yellow, which is why we bought more rental sticks.
- 5. Epunch purchases. Robin proposed the following: Move to approve a transfer of \$3000 from the General Fund to the Epunch Fund to cover the cost of additional 20 Epunch control set-ups (control unit, stand, flag & punch). Motion seconded. GNC2008 cost approx. \$1350 just in rentals to borrow equipment. Also, more EP equipment will allow us to expand Epunch to the Yellow course at local meets. Discussion on Epunch needs for GNC2009 and local meets.

Vote: Motion unanimously approved.

Action: Treasurer will make the transfer.

6. Steve explained that we need two additional travelling trophies for the Southeastern Interscholastic Championships. We now only have a Varsity trophy and a JROTC Varsity trophy. Steve Shannonhouse proposed the following: Move we buy two more travelling trophies, a Junior Varsity trophy for Orange course teams and a Intermediate Trophy for Yellow course teams. Motion seconded. Liz volunteered to arrange the purchase, estimated cost is \$250. Liz Curcuru moved to amend the motion to buying 4 trophies for \$500 and retire the 2 now in use to team that has always won them. Friendly amendment accepted.

Vote: Motion unanimously approved.

Action: Liz Curcuru will purchase the trophies on behalf of the club and will invoice GAOC.

7. GNC 2009 at F.D. Roosevelt State Park. USOF has now sanctioned GNC 2009 to be held January 17-19, 2009. Staff assignments: Martha Carr – meet director, Steve Shannonhouse – course designer, Bill Cheatum – course setter, Mike Ferguson – Vetter, Sam Smith and Laurie Searle – Start line, Finish – Amy Williams, Results – Guido Nordmann and Rick Shane, Dave Leach – Registration, Download – Robin Shannonhouse and Joey Ciza, Liz Curcuru – Lunch & Awards, Martha Carr – t-shirts, Kevin & Felicia Haywood – Map Hike.

- 8. Bylaws changes for more voting officers. Appointed officers, such as our GAOC VPs, are not allowed to vote, only elected officers. Right now only President, Secretary and Treasurer are elected. GAOC bylaws changes require approval by 2/3 of the voting members present at a general membership meeting, so it must be done today, wait a year, or call another general membership meeting. Laurie Searle proposed the following: Move to add 2 Officers at Large positions and amend the Bylaws accordingly. Motion seconded. The bylaws wording was amended at the meeting as attached. Vote: 15-1-2 to approve the amended bylaws, passed by necessary 2/3 majority.
- 9. Stipend for Meet Directors. Robin Shannonhouse proposed the following: Move to approve setting aside \$1500 in the General Fund for stipends for local meet directors. Each meet director would be entitled to request, in writing or via email to the GAOC Treasurer, up to a \$75 stipend for each local meet he/she administers to offset personal expenses such as travel cost. This is above any reimbursement for receipts for meet supplies. Motion seconded. Vote: Motion unanimously approved.
- 10. Targeting new members. Discussion only. Martha suggested publicizing National Orienteering Day. Liz suggested JROTC clubs could be encouraged to piggyback their events on GAOC local meets but need assistance in learning what needs to be done. Laurie suggested special training classes. Steve suggested that one of the new officers at large could be given the task of being a coordinator with JROTC events. Felicia suggested a coordinator could send out press releases about NOD to the public and coaches and volunteered to do so.
- 11. Amy Williams expressed her appreciation to GAOC for travel grants for her son for travel to A-meets and a trip with the USOF Junior team to Sweden.
- 12. **Elections**: President & 2 Officers at Large. Martha requested nominations. Martha nominated Liz Curcuru as an Officer at Large. Nomination seconded, unanimously approved. Liz nominated Anna Bringle as an Officer at Large. Martha seconded. Unanimously approved. Bill Cheatum nominated Mischelle Curtin as President. Nomination seconded, unanimously approved.

Action item: Martha must train her successor.

13. Motion to adjourn moved and seconded, unanimously approved.

Respectfully Submitted Robin Shannonhouse GAOC Secretary June 8, 2008

#### **GAOC Treasurer's Report**

## Georgia Orienteering Club Inc.

Account Balances 6/8/2008	Amount
ASSETS Cash and Bank Accounts Cash Heritage	763.45 16,749.83
TOTAL ASSETS	17,513.28
LIABILITIES Credit Cards VISA TOTAL LIABILITIES	1,141.74 1,141.74
OVERALL TOTAL	16,371.54

## Georgia Orienteering Club Inc. Fund Balances YTD 1/1/08-6/8/2008

Category Description Epunch Fund	Amount
EP Rentals	666.00
Ecard redistribution	360.00
Epunch supplies purchased TOTAL Epunch Fund	1,683.80 -657.80
General Fund	
Membership Dues	669.00
Meet Expense:Fees	-823.30
Meet Expense:Meet supplies	2,177.10
Usof Membership Dues	0.00
Interest Income	4.02
Maps-Other	- 1,397.64
Meet Expense:Rentals	-716.59
Bank Charges	-89.00
Meet Expense:Maps:Redistribution - Maps	60.00
Entry Fees - Local	6,401.00
Meet Expense:Refreshments	-33.00
USOF Fundraiser	10.00
T-shirt income	8.00
Meet Expense:Change	0.00
Office Expenses:supplies	24.95
Grants, Travel	-475.00

Service Awards Association Fees:GA Corp Charter Meet Expense:Volunteer expenses Office Expenses:Postage Contributions AGM TOTAL General Fund	-159.00 -30.00 -148.78 -97.51 10.00 -66.97 973.08
GNC08 Fund	_
Gnc08Expense:Awards	1,187.70
Gnc08Income:Entry	5,785.00
Gnc08Income:Ecard	761.00
Gnc08Income:Map	52.00
Gnc08Income:Shirt	1,918.00
Gnc08Income:Lunch	860.00
Gnc08Income:Overpay	-22.00
Gnc08Income:Ex-O	405.00
Gnc08Income:Owes	0.00
Gnc08Income:Parking	0.00
Gnc08Expense:Printing & publications	-280.00
Gnc08Expense:Rentals	1,780.38
Gnc08Expense:Fees	2,137.70
Gnc08Expense:Maps	2,600.00
Gnc08Income:Late	30.00
Gnc08Expense:Shirts	-288.90
Gnc08Expense:Volunteer expenses	-194.36
Gnc08Expense:Lunch	1,280.00
Gnc08Expense:Supplies	-352.16
Gnc08Expense:Service	-290.00
TOTAL GNC08 Fund	-602.20
GNC09 Fund	
Gnc09Expense:Rentals	-923.00
TOTAL GNC09 Fund	-923.00
OVERALL TOTAL	1,209.92

# Georgia Orienteering Club Inc. 12/31/06-12/31/2007

### Category Description

Amount

Epunch Fund	
Begining Balance, Epunch Fund	989.26
Ecard redistribution	1,030.00
EP Rentals	725.00
Epunch supplies purchased	-4,452.46
Transfers, ->EPF	3,000.00
TOTAL Epunch Fund	1,291.80

Ge	ne	ra	ΙF	un	М
G.		па		uu	u

GNC07Expense:Awards

GNC07Expense:Volunteer Expenses

GNC07Expense:Maps

General i unu	
Beg. Balance, General Fund	18,499.81
Meet Expense:Rentals	-828.76
Membership Dues	1,345.00
Association Fees:USOF RECHARTER	-2,325.00
Meet Expense:Fees	-1,145.40
Maps-Other	-2,376.40
Entry Fees - Local	10,159.00
Interest Income	60.46
Meet Expense:Meet supplies	-2,331.16
Bank Charges	-49.28
Office Expenses:Shipping	56.76
GNC2007 Loss	
	-907.33
Meet Expense:Refreshments	-182.80
Transfers, GF->	-7,000.00
Meet Expense:Map bags:Map bags;Redistribution	1.00
Perm Course Income	220.00
Meet Expense:Maps:Redistribution - Maps	665.28
Usof Membership Dues	0.00
Training Camp	307.65
Meet Expense:Meet Worker expenses	-124.09
Grants, Travel	-200.00
Meet Expense:Copies	-16.61
Map bags-Other	-1,963.02
Association Fees:GA Corp Charter	-30.00
Website	-110.40
Office Expenses:supplies	-139.06
Office Expenses:Postage	-358.31
T-shirt income	165.00
Public Relations	-10.00
USOF Fundraiser	0.00
AGM	-39.18
Training	-11.11
Office Expenses-Other	17.00
TOTAL General Fund	11,349.05
TOTAL Scholar and	11,040.00
GNC07 Fund	
Beg. Balance, GNC07 Fund	540.38
GNC07Income:Entry	8,587.00
GNC07Income:Shirt	2,838.00
GNC07Income:Ecard rental	•
	1,040.00
GNC07Income:Owes	0.00
GNC07Income:Map	60.00
GNC07Income:Extreme-O	291.00
GNC07Income:Lunch	2,096.00
GNC07Income:Sprint	0.00
GNC07Income:Overpay	-10.00
GNC07Expense:Supplies	-1,144.07
GNC07Expense: Awards	-2 052 08

-2,052.08

-905.50

-956.12

CNC07EvpoposiChirto	2 000 05
GNC07Expense:Shirts	-2,880.85
GNC07Expense:Fees GNC07Income:Hike	-3,775.30 195.00
	-9.00
GNC07Income:Parking	
GNC07Expense:Rental	-2,333.49
GNC07Expense:Contributions	-88.00
GNC07Expense:Refreshments	-414.42
GNC07Expense:Lunches	-2,480.00
GNC07Income:Contributions	525.20
Transfer GNC To Gen Fund	907.33
GNC07Expense:Shipping	-31.08
TOTAL GNC07 Fund	0.00
GNC08 Fund	
Gnc08Expense:Publicity	-65.00
Gnc08Expense:Shirts	-1,712.00
Gnc08Income:Entry	2,047.00
Gnc08Income:Ex-O	195.00
Gnc08Income:Shirt	756.00
Gnc08Income:Overpay	22.00
Gnc08Income:Map	36.00
Gnc08Income:Ecard	112.00
Gnc08Income:Lunch	100.00
Gnc08Expense:Rentals	-1,470.40
Gnc08Expense:Supplies	-239.99
TOTAL GNC08 Fund	-219.39
Map Fund	
Beg. Balance, Map Fund	1,160.00
Transfers, ->MF	4,000.00
TOTAL Map Fund	5,160.00
OVERALL TOTAL	17,581.46

#### Amended BYLAWS OF GEORGIA ORIENTEERING CLUB, INC.

#### I. NAME AND LOCATION

The name of the organization shall be "Georgia Orienteering Club, Inc." hereafter referred to as GAOC. The principal address of GAOC shall be located in Georgia and determined by the GAOC officers.

#### II. PURPOSE

- A. GAOC is organized and operated exclusively to foster state, regional and national amateur competition in the sport of orienteering.
- B. In furtherance of purpose "A" GAOC may hold meets and other orienteering events; host demonstrations, clinics, social events and other educational activities; print and publish books, magazines, articles and newsletters; make awards; produce maps; and do all such other things as may be conducive to the encouragement of orienteering.
- C. GAOC will not, as a substantial part of its activities, attempt to influence legislation or participate to any extent in a political campaign for or against any candidate for public office.

#### III. AFFILIATION

GAOC recognizes the United States Orienteering Federation (USOF) and the International Orienteering Federation (IOF) as the national and world governing bodies, respectively, of orienteering and shall abide by their rules and regulations except where prevented by local conditions, laws or customs.

#### IV. MEMBERSHIP

- A. Any person, couple or family may be a member of GAOC provided they pay the annual membership dues.
- B Membership grades shall consist of single memberships, family memberships, couple memberships, and group memberships. Family memberships are limited to dependents living in the same household. Couple memberships are limited to persons sharing the same address. Group memberships are limited to persons in a club, school, athletic team, or organization.
- C. Dues shall be paid annually for a 12-month period of membership. A membership shall run for 12 months beginning with the first of the month following the month in which dues are received. A membership will be considered delinquent and will be removed from the rolls and mailings if annual dues are not paid within 30 days of the dues anniversary. The membership may be reinstated by paying the required dues.

#### V. MEETINGS OF MEMBERSHIP

A. The annual meeting of the members shall be held within one month of the final spring event for the purpose of electing officers, receiving reports, and any other business that may arise. The president will schedule the meeting and announce the agenda in the newsletter preceding the meeting or by mailing notification to members with a mailing

- date of at least 14 days prior to the meeting. The president will be responsible for preparing an agenda for and chairing the annual membership meeting. Any member may submit an idea for the agenda to the president.
- B. Additional meetings of the general membership may be called by majority vote of the GAOC officers or by written request signed by 10 voting members of GAOC or five percent of the total membership, whichever is smaller. Written requests shall be submitted to the president and the president will schedule such meetings within 60 days of receipt of the written request and announce the meeting and its purpose in the GAOC newsletter or by mailing notification to members with a mailing date of at least 14 days prior to the meeting.
- C. Each single membership present shall be allocated one vote. Each couple, family, or group membership present shall be allocated one vote per person present, with a maximum of two votes. A quorum shall consist of twice the number of elected officers plus one. No official meeting shall be held unless a quorum is present.
- D. A majority vote of the members present is necessary to pass ordinary measures. All measures shall be deemed ordinary except those proposing an amendment to the bylaws.
- E. Parliamentary procedure will be carried out at meetings, and every effort will be made to discuss any measures coming before the group.
- F. The secretary shall record the minutes of each meeting and record any votes and actions approved. The minutes shall be published in the next GAOC newsletter or otherwise be made available to the members.

#### VI. OFFICERS

- A. Officers of GAOC shall include a president, a secretary, and a treasurer, and 2 officers at-large.
- B. Eligibility: Officers must be GAOC members and residents of Georgia.
- C. Elections will be held at the annual membership meeting, with the nominee receiving the majority of the votes cast winning the election. In the event that no nominee receives a majority on the first ballot, a second ballot shall be taken between the top two vote getters.
- D. Nominations for officers may be made to the secretary at any time prior to the annual membership meeting, or from the floor at the annual membership meeting.

#### E. Term of office

- 1. Officers will serve two years, from annual meeting to annual meeting.
- 2. In even years, the president and officers at-large will be elected. In odd years, the secretary and treasurer will be elected.
- 3. A vacancy in the position of any officer will be filled by appointment by the remaining officers until the next general membership meeting when an election will be held to fill the remaining term of office.
- 4. There will be no limit on the number of consecutive terms an officer may serve.

#### F. Duties

- 1. President: The president shall be the chief executive officer of GAOC and shall preside at meetings of the membership and of the GAOC officers. He or she shall supervise the functions of GAOC to insure accordance with these bylaws and approved policies of GAOC. The president will be responsible for the scheduling and staffing of GAOC events. The president will annually appoint delegates to represent GAOC at the annual convention of the United States Orienteering Federation.
- 2. Secretary: The secretary will be responsible for having a record kept of the proceedings of the meetings of the membership and of the GAOC officers. He or she will oversee the nomination and election procedures at the annual general meeting. The secretary will maintain correspondence as required by the president and/or the general membership of GAOC. The secretary will obtain necessary permits, permissions, insurance documents, and other such paperwork required to implement the orienteering event schedule as set by the president.
- 3. Treasurer: The treasurer shall supervise the maintenance of the membership and financial records of GAOC. The treasurer shall be the custodian of GAOC's funds and resources and shall supervise compliance with GAOC policies pertaining to the accounting, managing and disbursing of GAOC's funds and resources. The treasurer will annually file any reports and returns required by GAOC, the United States Orienteering Federation, or by government entities. The treasurer will be responsible for supplying any funds, deposits, or checks necessary to implement the orienteering event schedule as set by the president. The treasurer will file an annual financial report with the membership via the newsletter or some other means.
- 4. Officers at large: The officers at large duties are assigned by the President.

#### VII. VICE PRESIDENTS

- A. The president of the GAOC may appoint vice presidents to coordinate or manage specific GAOC functions. The president will define the duties and set the term of the vice presidents. The term will not exceed the term of the president, but may be renewed indefinitely. The duties of the vice presidents, as assigned by the president, shall not infringe on the duties of the other officers of the GAOC.
- B. Vice president duties may include, but are not limited to, the following positions:
  - Membership Coordinator
  - Newsletter Editor
  - Mapping Coordinator
  - Trail-O Coordinator
  - Letter-box Coordinator
  - Trim Course Coordinator.
  - Juniors Coordinator
  - Training Coordinator

#### VIII. FINANCES

A. Dues shall be as determined by a majority of the members present at a business meeting and shall not be changed more often that once per year.

- B. GAOC is a non-profit organization. Dues, entry fees, and other monies received by GAOC will be spent entirely for carrying out the stated purpose of the club.
- C. No part of the net earnings of the club shall inure to the benefit of its individuals.
- D. GAOC shall be empowered to participate in fund-raising activities.
- E. A majority of the elected officers may authorize any GAOC member to enter into a contract in the name of and on behalf of GAOC. Such authority may be general or confined to a specific instance.
- F. No loans shall be made by GAOC to any individual or entity.
- G. All checks, drafts or other orders for payment or indebtedness issued in the name of GAOC shall be signed by either the president or the treasurer. All funds of GAOC not otherwise employed shall be deposited in banks or other depositaries as approved by a majority of the elected officers.
- H. The treasurer shall be authorized to approve for payment any regular expenses as can be expected to maintain normal operations of GAOC. All such payments must be documented with receipts and/or invoices. Authorization for payments for amounts in excess of \$1000 to any individual or entity or for irregular expenditures shall be made by majority vote of the GAOC officers.
- I. GAOC will submit a portion of the annual dues (described in A supra) to USOF as membership in that body shall require. Responsibility for calculating the dues is that of the President. Any monies submitted to USOF must be reported to the membership either in the newsletter or by some other means.

#### IX. ADOPTION AND AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS

- A. These bylaws shall become effective based upon the majority of votes received of the voting members.
- B. These bylaws may be amended by a two-thirds vote at a meeting of the general membership.

#### X. DISSOLUTION

In the event of dissolution of GAOC, the net assets of GAOC shall not inure to the benefit of any private shareholder, individual or corporation but shall be distributed to one or more organizations organized and operated exclusively for charitable, educational, or other purposes as shall at the time qualify as exempt organizations under Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, as determined by the elected GAOC officers.